SAMPLE


(Entity Name)

(Address)

(City), (State), (Zip)

Request for Proposals

Specifications on Fully Funded Health, Dental and Vision,

Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment Benefits,

 Long Term Disability and Short Term disability

(NOTE: List what you are bidding)

GENERAL INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS
1.




, hereafter referred to as the “Planholder”, is calling for bids on the Fully funded Health, Dental, Vision, Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment, Long Term Disability and Short Term Disability benefits for eligible individuals and their dependents. (Note: Specify what benefits you are bidding.)
2.
Sealed Bids will be received by:

Name of Individual/Title



Address


City, State and Zip Code


Bid Clearly Marked:

Bid Number



Bid for Employee Benefits

Bids due no later than:

Time



Date


3.
Bids are required to provide a minimum 12-month rate guarantee, with a contract period of ____________, 2006 through _______________,2007. However, the Planholder reserves the right to accept a guarantee of less than or more than 12 months if it is in the Planholder’s interest.

4.
Since there are important considerations involved in selecting a carrier in addition to rates, the Planholder will not be required to accept the lowest bid. In addition to premium and retention charges, services rendered will also serve as a basis for award of the contract.

5.
The Carrier must submit evidence of ability to service the group without undue requirements of the Planholder’s employees. Each Carrier should list four (4) references that have terminated within the last year that are similar in employee census. (Form Provided)

6.
The Planholder reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to accept any bid deemed advantageous to the Planholder. Any variance from these specifications must be stated in detail with complete reference to the bid specification provision from which the deviation is being made.

7.
It is the intention of the Planholder to submit the contract or contracts to be recommended to the governing body at the meeting held on __________________________.

8.
All bids must be based on exact duplication of the existing plan benefits unless alternate benefits are requested. Any variance of benefits must be explained in writing and attached to the bid for consideration. (Plan of current benefits attached and a benefit variance should be completed.)

9.
Bids must be submitted for coverage on all eligible full-time regular employees, early retirees, retirees, dependents and Continuation of Coverage participants (May need to expand to include council or governing board). 

10.
Actively at work, disability, retiree and dependent exclusions must be waived.

 11.
Waiting period: All full-time eligible individuals and their dependents are eligible on the ______ day of employment.

12.
Please complete the appropriate enclosed bid forms that include:

a.
Proposal form including a Declaration of Compliance.

b.
Questionnaire

c.
References


All bidders, including the current carrier, shall complete the bid forms provided. All bid forms submitted must be signed by an authorized official that has the authority to bind the bidder. 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE BID FORMS WILL RESULT IN BID BEING DISQUALIFIED.

BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS
1.
All companies submitting bids must be licensed by the State of Texas and be permitted to contract with the State or any of its subdivisions. Further, it is preferred that companies be recommended in the latest edition of Best’s Life Insurance Reports with a general policyholder’s rating of at least an A, or in the case of casualty companies have a rating of at least an A in the latest annual edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide.

2.
Bidders who fall under the guidelines of the Texas Political Subdivision Uniform Group Benefits Act (Chapter 172 Local Government Code) and the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Article 4413 (32c) Vernons Texas Civil Statutes will be acceptable. 

3.
The most recent audited financial statement must be attached. 

PLAN ADMINISTRATION 

1.
Planholder Responsibility: The Planholder will provide for payroll deductions of premium and advise the carrier of additions/deletions from the coverage. The Planholder will assist in the logistics of the enrollment process.

2.
Selected Carriers Responsibility: The carrier will provide employee booklets outlining the benefits and instructions on filing a claim, identification cards, enrollment and orientation materials, and other appropriate communication materials deemed necessary by the Planholder. Selected carrier is liable for all claims incurred as of the effective date through the termination date. The carrier will provide the following quarterly claim reports:

a. Summary of Paid Medical and Prescription Claims;

b. Variance of Current Benefits with Submitted Benefits

c.
And upon request of the Planholder, furnish a Summary of Claims in excess of $10,000, including diagnoses and prognosis;

d.
Average claim turn around time;

e.
Telephone abandonment rate;

f.
Telephone average on hold time; 

g.
Customer Service Accuracy for Benefit Eligibility and verification

h.
Claims Financial Accuracy; and 

i. Claim Procedural Accuracy.

ii. Average Network Discounts for the most current twelve months

iii. Formula for Calculating Discounts: 

a. Billed Charges

b. Eligible Plan Charges

c. Discount includes discount calculation after stop loss provision

iv. Provider Network Directory

3.
The Selected Carrier will describe their Medical Management Services including:

Utilization Review

Concurrent Review

Large Case Management

Transplant Management

Discharge Planning

Disease Management.

4.
Define your HIPAA compliance with Privacy and Security guidelines. Define work process to recognize National Provider Identification Number?

5.
Define process to transition from social security numbers to unique identification numbers?

6.
 Define procedures for Managed Care Efficiency Reporting.

BENEFIT SUMMARY (Include in list only what bidding and attach booklet)
See Exhibit A – Current Medical Plan Benefits

See Exhibit B – Current Prescription Plan Benefits

See Exhibit C – Current Dental Plan Benefits

See Exhibit D – Current Vision Plan Benefits

See Exhibit E – Current Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Benefits

See Exhibit F – Current Optional Life Plan Benefits

See Exhibit G – Current LTD Benefits

See Exhibit H – Current STD Benefits

See Exhibit I – Current Section 125/Flex Program

See Exhibit J – Current Health Reimbursement Account

See Exhibit L – Current Health Savings Account

CLAIMS EXPERIENCE, PLAN & PARTICIPATION HISTORY (Include in list only what bidding)
See Exhibit H – Medical

See Exhibit I – Dental

See Exhibit J – Vision 

See Exhibit K – Life and AD&D

See Exhibit L – LTD

See Exhibit M – STD

CATASTROPHIC CLAIMS

See Exhibit N – Catastrophic

EMPLOYEE CENSUS DATA

See Exhibit O – Census Data

QUESTIONNAIRE

1.
Address of your company’s home office. 

2.
Briefly describe your Company. (Date established, number of employees, number of insured) 

3.
What is your company’s most current Best Rating? 
4.
Is your company licensed to do business in the State of Texas? 
5.
How many open complaints are on file against your company with the Texas Department of Insurance? 

How many complaints were filed with the Texas Department of Insurance during calendar year 2001? 
6.
Is your company currently involved in any litigation as a defendant over any benefits or services being proposed in response to this RFP? 






 

If yes, please provide a brief description of each suit and the amount involved. 
7.
Where do you propose to pay claims for this account? 
8.
How do you establish “usual and customary” or “reasonable and customary”? What provider services are limited to reasonable and customary charges?

9.
Does your company provide professional negotiation services for non-network providers?

10.
Does your company use usual and customary for physician, ancillary, and facility claims? For out of network claims?

11.
Does your company access a supplemental network for out of network claims?

12.
How do you define turn around time? Provide claim turnaround time statistics for the most recent 12 month period.

13.
Provide abandonment rate statistics for the most recent twelve month period.

14.
What is your customer quality service statistics for the almost recent 12 months?

15.
Is Medical Management including On-site wellness programs, Health Risk Assessment, Utilization Review, Concurrent Review, Discharge Planning, Disease Management and Large Case Management included in your proposal? If yes, briefly describe the process, including who has the authority to deny an admission.

a) Define you on-site wellness programs.

b) What is the procedure to provide Health Risk Assessments to covered individuals:

c) Do you provide Medical Management Services? If so, please describe.

d) Do you provide Large Case Management Services? If so, please describe.

e) Do you provide Disease Management Services? If so, please describe.

16.
Describe the integration of the above medical management information.

17.
What are the pre-certification requirements?

18.
Do you have a schedule of mandatory second opinions? If yes, please include your schedule. 
19.
Do you agree to a no-loss/no-gain takeover on all benefits for all employees (continuation of coverage to retirees, council or governing body) and dependents?

20.
What is your time frame for providing renewal rates to the Plan holder? 


21.
What percent of revenue is your company’s operating expense? 

22.
Specify what guidelines your processors are required to follow to identify potential coordination of benefit claims and describe your procedures for handling these claims.

23.
Will you honor deductibles that have been satisfied for the current calendar year and what evidence would employees need to furnish?

24.
Do you offer a medical conversion policy? If yes, is there an additional charge?

25.
Do you offer life insurance conversion or portability options?

26.
Will you provide the administration of Continuation of Coverage? Please explain. Is there an additional fee for Continuation of Coverage administration? Do you offer direct billing to the Continuation of Coverage?

27.
Do you have a Medicare Supplement for retirees? Does the Medicare Supplement offer a Prescription benefit?

28.
Can <65 and >65 retirees be covered on your plan?

29.
Will your company direct bill retirees and Continuation of Coverage participants? 


If yes, is there an additional charge? 


30.
Describe your procedures for handling appeals of denied or disputed claims?

31.
Do you have a toll-free telephone number for handling inquiries from staff and employees? If so, is there an additional charge? 

32.
Do you provide an on-line customer service and claim status look up program.?

33.
What claim cost management procedures does your company have implemented?

34.
Is the cost of providing employee booklets and identification cards included in the quoted rates? If no, what is the additional charge? 

35.
Will your company provide monthly claim reports? 
36.
Will your company provide on-site enrollment assistance? If yes, is there a charge?

37.
Does your company provide on-line enrollment? Does your company provide run-in and run-out claims payment services?

38.
What is your company process for collecting provider overpayments? 

39.
Do the health rates include IBNR (Incurred but not reported) reserves? 

If no, what are your company’s procedures for developing IBNR (Incurred but not reported) reserves for the renewal? 






40.
Are the rates your company quoted guaranteed for 12 months?

41.
Do the dental rates include IBNR (Incurred but not reported) reserves? 

If no, what are your company’s procedures for developing IBNR (Incurred but not reported) reserves for the renewal? 





42.
What procedures have you implemented to become compliant with April 2003 HIPAA Title H Privacy/ Confidentiality and Security requirements?

43.
Upon termination, will you release last 12 months of Claims history and benefit accumulator information?

44.
Upon termination, will you release a list of paid claims, diagnosis and prognosis in excess of $10,000 for last 12 months claims history?

45.
Is the claim system integrated with Medical Management, Billing & Eligibility, Customer Service, Disease Management and Flex?

46.
Please attach your Preferred Provider directory?

47.
What are the average negotiated discounts for hospital and outpatient services in this zip code area? Please ensure the average percentage of discount does not include savings due to no payment for non-eligible benefits and claims in excess of reasonable & customary. Please define your formula for discount calculation regarding: billed charges, eligible plan charges, out of pocket or other insurance charges and do the discounts reflect payment made after provider stop loss provision met. 

48.
Does your company offer a flexible spending account benefit? If so, please define the program and include covered benefits. Is the flexible spending account paper or debit?

49.
Does your company offer a debit card for flex and/or HRA/HSA benefits?

Exhibit H. Two years of Medical History and Claims Experience

DATE

From







To







Carrier History:
Carrier








Participation History:
Total # employees






Total # covered ees






Employer contribution

%

%


Basic Benefit Summary:

Deductible







Coinsurance







Lifetime Maximum






NOTE:
Please explain any other significant changes in benefit design. (i.e. Cost Containment, Prescription Care, Accidental benefits, Mental and Nervous benefits etc.)

Claims Experience:

Two Years of Total Health Claims 





Two Years of RX Claims
 _________

___________



Health Claims in Excess of $10,000 for current year:

	Date of Birth
	M/F
	Claims Status Diagnosis
	Prognosis
	Total Paid

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Two years of Prescription History and Claims Experience.

DATE

From







To







Top Ten prescriptions:






 
Prescription Plan Design:




Retail
Copay









Deductible







Benefit Percentage








 Mail Service
Copay









Deductible







 Benefit Percentage






1.
Identify how many non over the counter prescriptions are on the maximum allowable charge list. 

2.
Identify any prescriptions that require prior authorization.

3.
Identify any prescriptions that have a monthly or calendar year cap. 

4.
Identify if the pharmacy benefit manager requires step therapy intervention?

5.
Are injectable prescriptions available through the pharmacy benefit manager?

6.
Identify any prescriptions that have an age cap.

7.
Identify prescriptions that are excluded from plan.

8.
Does the mail order program substitute prescriptions if provider does not document “dispense as written”? If so, how is employee notified?

9.
Are rebate programs available through the Pharmacy Benefit Manager? If so, explain. 

Exhibit I.
Two years of Dental History and Claim Experience

DATE

From






To






Carrier History:
Carrier








Participation History:
Total # employees






Total # covered EEs 






Employer contribution

%

%


Basic Benefit Summary:
Deductible







Preventive


%

%


Basic



%

%


Major



%

%


Orthodontia


%

%


Orthodontia Maximum






Annual Maximum






Claims Experience:
Dental Claims






Exhibit J.
Two years of Vision History and Claim Experience

DATE

From






To






Carrier History:
Carrier








Participation History:
Total # employees






Total # covered EEs 






Employer contribution

%

%


Claims Experience:
Vision Claims






Exhibit K. Two years of Life and AD&D History 

DATE

From






To






Carrier History:
Carrier - Life, AD&D






Carrier - Supplemental






Carrier - Dependent






Amount of Coverage:
Standard Life






Supplemental Life






Dependent Life






Number of Persons Covered:
Standard Life






Supplemental Life






Dependent Life






Exhibit L. Two years of LTD History 

DATE

From






To






Carrier History:
Carrier








Participation History:
Total # employees






Total # covered EEs 






Employer contribution

%

%


Claims Experience:
LTD Claims






Exhibit M. Two years of STD History 

DATE

From






To






Carrier History:
Carrier








Participation History:
Total # employees






Total # covered EEs 






Employer contribution

%

%


Claims Experience:
STD Claims






1. Does your proposal policy have a guaranteed conversion? 

 What is your life conversion charge? 

 When is it charged to the plan? 




2. Does your proposal policy have Waiver of Premium? 
 What is the definition of disability for Waiver of Premium?






















3. Describe your billing procedure.





















4. How is a claim filed?














































5. What is your average turn around time for paying claims?





Exhibit O. Census Data

Active Employees:

	Date of Birth
	Sex
	Annual Salary
	Title
	Type of Coverage

EO/ES/EC/EF
	Life Ins. Volume

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$


Retirees

	Date of Birth
	Sex
	Annual Salary
	Title
	Type of Coverage

EO/ES/EC/EF
	Life Ins. Volume

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$

	
	
	$
	
	
	$


Continuation of Coverage

	Date of Birth
	Sex
	Annual Salary
	Title
	Type of Coverage

EO/ES/EC/EF
	COC 

Effective Date

	
	
	$
	
	
	

	
	
	$
	
	
	

	
	
	$
	
	
	

	
	
	$
	
	
	

	
	
	$
	
	
	

	
	
	$
	
	
	


PROPOSAL FORM

The undersigned, as Bidder, does hereby declare that they have read the specifications for Group Medical, Dental, Life and AD&D for the Planholders employees, and with full knowledge of the requirements, does hereby agree to furnish the administrative services in full accordance with the specifications and requirements. The Bidder also agrees to duplicate present coverage and if not, will attach itemized detail of any differences.

Medical Rates
Monthly



 Monthly

Employee Only




EE 
 



Child(ren)



 or
Family 



Family







 
Dental Rates

Employee only




 EE
 



Spouse




 or
Family
 



Child(ren)



Family




Vision Rates

Employee only




 EE
 



Spouse




or
 Family 



Child(ren)



Family




Life and AD&D Rates per thousand

Life Rates



AD&D Rates



EE Optional Life



Dep Optional Life



Retiree Life



Retiree Optional Life



LTD Rates per hundred

LTD Rates



STD Rates per thousand

STD Rates



Name of Bidder:













Address:














City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:




 Date:







Signature:





 Title:







REFERENCES

Please provide the Policyholder with three references that have been insured with your company for at least three years.

Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees: 




Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees:




Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees:




TERMINATIONS

Please provide the Policyholder with three references that have terminated with your company in the past year.

Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees: 




Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees:




Company Name:












Name of Bidder:












Contact Person:





 Title:






Address:













City, State, Zip:













Telephone Number:





# of Employees:




DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE

The undersigned does hereby declare that they have read the Request for Proposal on which they are submitting a proposal with full knowledge of the requirements, and does hereby agree to furnish all services in full accordance with the requirements outlined in the Request for Proposal.

The proposer affirms that, to the best of their knowledge, the proposal has been arrived at independently and is submitted without collusion to obtain information or gain any favoritism that would in any way limit competition or give unfair advantage over other proposers.

The undersigned hereby declares that they have the authority to represent the proposer in submitting this proposal at the unit prices and level of services herein after notice of proposal award. 

Company Name













Address












City, State, Zip Code











Contact Person/Agent











Area Code & Phone Number










Authorized Signature











Typed Name of Signatory










Title of Signatory











Date
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